
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Miss R Hawes  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515118 
E-mail address: ruth.hawes@chorley.gov.uk 
Your Ref:  
Our Ref: RH/AJS 
Doc ID:  

Date: 27 September 2005  
 

Chief Executive: 
Jeffrey W Davies  MA LLM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 

 

A meeting of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel is to be held in the Committee Room, 

Town Hall, Chorley on Wednesday, 5th October, 2005 commencing at 6.30 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for absence   

 
 2. Declarations of Any Interests   

 
  Members of the Panel are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal 

interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the 
Members Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, then the 
individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the room and not seek to influence a decision on the matter. 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Customer Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel held on 7 September 2005 (enclosed) 
 

 4. Customer Overview and Scrutiny Business Plan Monitoring Reports April - July 
2005  (Pages 7 - 18) 

 
  Report of the Head of Corporate and Policy Services  

 
 5. Analysis of Complaints to the Chief Executive and Local Government 

Ombudsman 2004/05  (Pages 19 - 46) 
 

  Report of Head of Corporate and Policy Services (enclosed) 
 

 6. Smoking in public places - consultation document  (Pages 47 - 76) 
 

  A guide to responding from the Smoke Free Alliance and a draft response formulated 
by the Choosing Health in Chorley and South Ribble Group (enclosed) 
 
 

Town Hall
Market Street

Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

 



2 

 7. Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement Inquiry - Collecting Evidence   
 

  a) Discussion with Accountant for DPE from FInance Unit   
 

  b) Information on the Mobile Parking Attendant Patrol Beat (to be circulated at 
the meeting)   

 
  c) To consider questions to be asked at the site visit   

 
  d) To consider dates to interview identified witnesses   

 
  e) Inquiry documentation (enclosed)  (Pages 77 - 84) 

 
 8. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme  (Pages 85 - 86) 

 
  Work Programme (enclosed)  

 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 

1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

(Councillor Mrs Walsh (Chair), Councillors Cullens, Mrs D Dickinson, M Lees, Malpas, Miss 

Molyneaux, Russell, E Smith, Mrs J Snape and Snow) for attendance. 

 

2. Agenda and reports to Group Director, Head of Corporate and Policy Services and Head of 

Public Open Space for attendance. 

 

3. Agenda and reports to Executive Leader (Councillor J Wilson) Deputy Leader (Councillor 

Edgerley) Leader of Conservative Group (Councillor P Goldsworthy), Leader of Liberal 

Democrat Group (Councillor K Ball), and Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(Councillor J Walker) for information. 

 

4. Agenda and reports to Executive Member for Traffic and Transportation (Councillor D Gee) 

and Councillor I Smith for information. 

 

5. Agenda and reports to all remaining Chief Officers for information. 

 

6. Agenda and reports to all remaining Members of the Council for information. 
 

This information can be made available to you in larger print or on audio tape, or 

translated into your own language.  Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this 

service. 

 

z 



3 

 
 

 

 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2005 

Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 7 September 2005 
 

Present: Councillor Mrs Walsh (Chair) and Councillors Cullens, Mrs D Dickinson, M Lees, 
Malpas and Miss Molyneaux 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors D Gee (Executive Member for Traffic and Transportation) 

 
 

05.CUS.41 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors E Smith, Russell and J 
Snape. 
 

05.CUS.42 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 
No interests were declared.  
 

05.CUS.43 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That minutes of the meeting of the Customer Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel held on 6 July 2005 be confirmed as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair.  
 

05.CUS.44 STANDARDS FOR BETTER HEALTH  - DRAFT DECLARATION  - CHORLEY 
AND SOUTH RIBBLE PRIMARY CARE TRUST  
 
The Panel welcomed the Director of Clinical Governance, Sally Fletcher and the Head 
of Clinical Governance, Glenn Mather from Chorley and South Ribble Primary Care 
Trust.   
 
Sally Fletcher presented a report entitled “Assessment for Improvement/Standards for 
Better Health Update and Action Plan”.  This was an annual assessment of healthcare 
organisations set out by the Healthcare Commission.  There were seven domains of 
Standards for Better Health, divided into 24 core and 13 developmental standards.  
Comments gathered from partners and a draft declaration would be submitted to the 
PCT Board meeting in October and that the final declaration would be made in April 
2006.  
 
Members considered the report, the Action Plan and the Guidance on the Assessment 
of Core Standards.  In response to a query it was noted that several inspections had 
already taken place to monitor the implementation and progress made.  This included 
evidence that strategies were being implemented, not just that a strategy was in 
existence.  
 
The Panel discussed several points raised in the Action Plan, including MRSA and the 
quality of service versus costs.  The benefits of engagement with local partners and 
Patient and Public Involvement Forums were noted. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

1. To thank the Director of Clinical Governance, Sally Fletcher and the 
Head of Clinical Governance, Glenn Mather from Chorley and South 
Ribble Primary Care Trust for their report and attendance, 

2. To note and support the “Assessment for Improvement/Standards for 
Better Health Update and Action Plan”,  

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2005 

3. To invite the PCT to update the Panel prior to the final declaration in 
April. 

 

05.CUS.45 ONE STOP SHOP INQUIRY UPDATE  
 
The Panel received a report from the Assistant Head of Customer Services reporting 
the actions taken following the One Stop Shop Inquiry recommendations presented to 
the Executive Cabinet in June 2004.  
 
In response to a query the Assistant Head of Customer Services advised that a 
meeting was scheduled for late September with the Development Control Manager to 
discuss the recommendations made in relation to Planning Services.  
 
Members noted that Human Resources were considering the recommendation with 
regard to training staff to use sign language on a corporate level.  A further update 
would be brought to the Panel on this recommendation.   
 
The Members supported the introduction of weekly surgeries with the Community 
Development Officer in partnership with Lancashire County Council.   
 
The Chair congratulated all the Officers and Members on the “Excellent” rating in the 
recent Customer Access and Focus Best Value Inspection.  The Council also received 
and “Excellent” for prospects for improvement.  This was a unique result throughout 
the country.  
 
RESOLVED – That the update report be noted. 
 

05.CUS.46 REVIEW OF RACE EQUALITY SCHEME  
 
The Panel received the report of the Head of Corporate and Policy Services informing 
Members of progress made by the Council towards the objectives set out in the 
Corporate Equalities Plan since the update given in July and to inform Members of the 
recent review of the relevance of council services to race, gender and disability.   
 
The Panel discussed the report and queried several points.  It was noted that training 
sessions for Members would be planned in September and October.  A letter had 
been sent to all Members as part of the consultation process.  Other groups being 
consulted were the Local Strategic Partnership and community groups. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the report be noted,  
2. That an update on the timescales for the completion of the low priority 

function/policy be presented to a future meeting of the Panel. 
 

05.CUS.47 DECRIMINALISATION OF PARKING ENFORCEMENT INQUIRY - 
COLLECTING EVIDENCE  
 
The Panel considered the following items as part of the collecting evidence stage of 
the ongoing Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement Inquiry.  
 
(a) To discuss financial matters with the Accountant for DPE from Finance 

Unit  
 
This item was deferred to the next meeting with the consent of the Chair. 
 
(b) To receive the report of the Sub-Groups held on 9 August 2005 and 17 

August 2005  
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2005 

The Panel considered the minutes of the two Sub-Groups held on 9 August and 17 
August 2005.   
 
The issue of Disabled Badge holders incorrectly displaying their badges was 
considered.  This could be a security issue as if the photograph side of the badge was 
displayed it highlighted the fact that the person was not a home and therefore could 
be at risk from burglary.  It was noted that there were instances of abuse of the 
Disabled Badges.  
 
The Panel discussed drivers who parked in a selfish way, for example parking across 
two spaces.  The number of these instances had reduced since the introduction of 
DPE.  
 
Members noted that the number of PCN’s/Car Park tickets sold was less than 1% 
from September 2004 and June 2005.  The perception of the public that a larger 
number of people receiving PCN’s than was actually the case needed to be 
addressed.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 

1. That the Panel highlight to the Department of Transport the lack of clear 
guidance on the side of the Disabled Badge that should be displayed,  

2. The perception of the public that a larger number of people receiving 
PCN’s than was actually the case needed to be addressed.  

 
(c) To consider the report Penalty Charge Notice Processing – An Overview  
 
The Panel received the report of the Parking Manager outlining the procedure for the 
processing of PCN’s and the representation/adjudication process.  A standard letter 
sent out when an appeal was successful was noted.   
 
In response to a query the Members noted that the rate of successful debt recovery in 
other Local Authorities was around 70%.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
(d) To consider articles summarising the Childs report and report by the 

University of Birmingham  
 
The Panel considered the articles “Wake up call for enforcers” and “Time to listen to 
some advice” regarding the recent Childs report and University of Birmingham 
research.   
 
The Panel noted that a number of recommendations had been made geared towards 
changing the negative public perception of DPE.  This perception was a national 
issue.   
 
RESOLVED – That the articles be noted.  
 
(e) To consider Information relating to drivers with disabled badges  
 
The Panel considered the Blue Booklet given to drivers who received a disabled 
badge and a letter sent to a driver explaining why a PCN had been issued.   
 
RESOLVED – That the information be noted.  
 
(f) To receive an example of a Penalty Charge Notice  
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2005 

An example of a PCN was presented.  The reason for the ticket to be issued, the 
penalty to be paid, instructions for payment and contact details for any queries were 
noted.  The PA took a picture of the Pay and Display machine and the PCN placed on 
the vehicle in each instance.  
 
RESOLVED – That the example of a PCN be noted.  
 
(g) To examine Parking Attendant beat information  
 
The Panel viewed the beat information for the Parking Attendants and noted that the 
Flat Iron Car Park appeared on two beats.  In response to a query the Members were 
advised that if there were two PA’s completing a beat together the second person 
would probably be either a supervisor or a PA receiving on the job training.  
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
(h) To arrange dates and location for the proposed site visit  
 
Members discussed a venue for a site visit and noted that it was difficult to find a 
comparative authority to Chorley as other authorities with DPE were County or Unitary 
authorities.  The Members expressed a wish to meet with the officers involved and if 
possible the Executive Member.   
 
The Panel expressed a wish to visit an authority that had been operating DPE for a 
number of years to gain the benefits of their experience and any lessons learnt.   
 
RESOLVED – That a site visit be held in October and that the questions to be 
asked at the site visit be considered at the Panel meeting in October.  
 
(i) To arrange dates and times for Councillors to visit the Parking Manager 

and view the computer system  
 
This item was deferred to the next meeting with the consent of the Chair. 
 
(j) To examine publicity information for the public  
 
Members considered draft leaflets entitled “Pavements are for People” and “Safer 
parking with your disabled badge”.  These would be used in certain situations were a 
driver had parked in an inconsiderate manner.  It was noted that a Traffic Regulation 
Order needed to be in place for the PA to dispense a PCN. 
 
The leaflets would be presented to the Disability Liaison Group and should be printed 
soon.  
 
RESOLVED – That the leaflets be noted and supported.  
 
(k) To consider questions for the questionannire to seek the views of the 

public, Councillors and Parish Councillors  
 
A questionnaire would be undertaken on behalf of the Panel, the questions to be 
asked were discussed: 
 

1. The signs indicating parking restrictions are clearly visible and well 
maintained. 

2. The regulations allowing loading and unloading of goods outside commercial 
premises are generally fair. 

3. There is good provision of 'on-street' parking for residents without driveways 
and for their visitors. 

4. The 'off-street' parking bay provision for people with disabilities is good. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 5  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 7 September 2005 

5. The Parking Attendants are always around and about providing a visible 
deterrent against illegal parking. 

6. The Parking Attendants provide effective enforcement cover for the outer and 
residential areas as well as the commercial area of the town. 

7. The Parking Attendants are generally fair in their approach to parking 
enforcement. 

8. The presence of the Parking Attendants around the town is generally helpful in 
providing assistance to people and in deterring crime. 

9. The Parking Attendants are trustworthy and honest in their approach to the 
work of enforcing parking regulations. 

 
RESOLVED – That the draft questions be sent to the company compiling the 
questionnaire.  
 

05.CUS.48 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
RESOLVED - That the Work Programme be noted.  
 

05.CUS.49 ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIR DECIDES IS/ARE URGENT  
 
With the consent of the Chair a Member of the Public who had attended the meeting 
discussed an incident of inconsiderate parking with the Panel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 6



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 7



Page 2 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING STATEMENTS APRIL- 
JULY 2005 

 
 

 
Contents 
          Page 
 
 
   
  Property Services     3 - 4 
 
 
  Information Communication 
        Technology Services    5 - 7 
 
 
  Customer, Democratic     8-11 
  and Office Support Services 
 
 
 
Note of Clarification 
 
Key Performance Indicators:  
 

Symbols and Colours are used to provide a quick guide to how Service Units are 
performing against Key Performance Indicators: 
  
 = Performance is better than target and the tolerances 

set for this indicator. 

      
 = Performance is on track and within the tolerances set 

for this indicator. 

      
 = 

Green 
KPI 
 
 
Blue 
KPI 
 
 
Red 
KPI 

Performance is worse than target and the tolerances 
set for this indicator. 

  
 
 
For further information on the way in which Performance Symbols are calculated please 
contact Jenny Rowlands (01257 515248) or Sarah Dobson (01257 515325) in Corporate 
and Policy Services.  

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 8



Page 3 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

 

 

 
BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING STATEMENT FOR THE  
PROPERTY SERVICES UNIT 
 
FOR THE PERIOD April 2005 to July 2005 
 
 
1. KEY MESSAGES 
 
 The summary of KPI performance is as follows: 
 

 CURRENT 
POSITION 

FORECAST 
OUTTURN 

   
Number of green KPI’s 2 1 
Number of blue KPI’s 3 8 
Number of red KPI’s 2 1 
Number of KPI’s not yet measured (year end) 3 0 
   

 
2. BUDGET UPDATE 
 
 Latest budget projections suggest outturn in line with provision. 
 
3. SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS 
 
 The major service development this year relates to outsourcing/partnering for both 

professional property services and markets functions.  Both are on target for completion by 
the end of March 06.  All other significant service developments are on target. 

 
4. PERFORMANCE AGAINST UNIT KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Indicator 
Description 

Performance 
2004/05 

Target 
2005/06 

Performance 
at July 05 

Comments 

BV 156 % buildings 
accessible to all 
users 
 
 
PR001 % buildings in 
satisfactory condition 
 
 
PR001 % planned 
maintenance prog. 
Completed 
 
PR004a % market 
stalls vacant 
 
PR004b % town 
centre shops vacant 
 
 
 

76% 
 
 
 
 

90% 
 
 
 

89% 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 

7.3% 
 
 
 
 

88% 
 
 
 
 

95% 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 

25% 
 
 

7.3% 
 
 
 
 

78% 
 
 
 
 

Year end 
 
 
 

53% 
 
 
 

35% 
 
 

5.8% 
 
 
 
 

Coppull Leisure centre now 
in progress.  Clayton Leisure 
centre due to start under 
new CLS contract later this 
year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See note below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 9



Page 4 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

PR005 % land 
registration complete 
& info available 
electronically 
 
 
PR006 % capital 
receipts from 
property disposals 
 
PR007 % income 
received from 
property investments 
 
PR008 energy 
consumption in 
Council buildings as 
a % of national 
benchmark 
 
PR009 % reduction 
in CO2 emmissions 
 
 

New indicator 
 
 
 
 
 

New indicator 
 
 
 

New indicator 
 
 
 

Electric 
91.4 
 

Gas 
38.2 
 

New indicator 

50% 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 

50% 
 

2% 

0% 
 
 
 
 
 

23% 
 
 
 

24%  
 
 
 
 

Year end  
 
 

Year end 
 

Year end 

Registration 50% complete 
and info will be made 
available electronically in 
one batch at the end of the 
exercise – circa Dec 2005. 

 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
 The only indicator giving cause for concern at the moment relates to market occupancy.  This 

is being addressed in the longer term through the procurement exercise and in the medium 
term by re-organisation of stalls on the Flat Iron and preparatory work for a move to Market 
Street. 

 
 
 
 
 
 Signature: R.P. Handscombe 
 Head of Property Services 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 10



Page 5 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING STATEMENT FOR THE ICT SERVICES UNIT 
 
FOR THE PERIOD APRIL to JULY 2005 
 
 
1. KEY MESSAGES 
 
 The Unit continues to make progress against the eGovernment programme with both 

BVPI157 and the Priority Outcomes programme showing improvements. 
 Demand in the area of desktop support continues to outstrip supply and the perceived 

urgency of calls mirrors this as dependence upon ICT grows. This is a serious challenge to 
the Customer Services Team as they strive to achieve high levels of customer satisfaction. 

 A good deal of the Units resource has been directed at the opening of the new Contact 
Centre and the Accommodation programme. 

 Significant progress has been made in the Intranet redesign project and the new committee 
administration system ‘Modern.Gov’. 

 April saw the Unit absorb the responsibility for telephony. At a time of significant staff moves 
this has impacted considerably on available resources with the administrative and technical 
requirements far outstripping previous requirements. 

 
 The Unit is working towards the adoption of SOCITM KPI’s but has not made as the progress 

it would wish due to commitments in other areas. 
 

 CURRENT 
POSITION 

FORECAST 
OUTTURN 

   
Number of green KPI’s 1 6 
Number of blue KPI’s 0 0 
Number of red KPI’s 1 0 
Number of KPI’s not yet measured 4 0 
   

 
2. BUDGET UPDATE 
 
  

SERVICE LEVEL BUDGET MONITORING 2005/2006 
       

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
       

July 2005      
      £'000 

       
ORIGINAL CASH BUDGET      905 
       
Add Adjustment for In Year Cash 
Movements   

       
Slippage from 2004/2005       

 - Use of Earmarked Reserves                -   
Transfer from Contingency                -   
       
Cabinet approved decisions                -   

Delegated Authority decisions                -   
Correction of Accounting Error      4 
       
ADJUSTED CASH BUDGET      909 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 11



Page 6 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

       
Less Corporate Savings                 -   
       
Contribution to Corporate savings targets    

                  -   

        

       

       
CURRENT CASH BUDGET      909 
       

       

FORECAST      
       
EXPENDITURE      
Salaries (Technician/E-Gov Prog Man/Cust 
Serv Assist.) (55)  
Young Person's Development Programme  5  

Temporary Staff    48  
Telephones calls forecast   8  
Expenditure under (-) or over (+) current cash 
budget    6 

         
      

INCOME       

Telephones (private calls)   (6)  
Income under (+)/ over (-) achieved               (6) 
       
       
FORECAST CASH OUTTURN 2005/2006     909 
       
       
Key Assumptions      
       
Young Person's Development Programme to be funded from salary saving. Cust Servs Assist 
post to be kept vacant. 
E-Gov Programme Manager post vacant until 
Jan 2006   
E-Gov Programme Manager cover until 
September    
Technician cover continues at current levels    
Income from private telephone calls will continue at current 
levels.  
       
Key Issues/Variables     
       
       
       
Key Actions      

 
3. SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS 
 
 The Unit played a significant role in the Shared Services Contact Centre project. Opening 

deadlines have been met, a particular achievement given the fact we are the first to 
implement a unique solution within the partnership. 

 A promising start has been made on the redesign of the Councils Intranet. Staff engagement 
has been excellent. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 12



Page 7 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

 The new Customer Focussed Access and Service Design Strategy has been completed and 
approval gained for consultation. 

 The Unit has had a significant involvement in the implementation of key corporate projects 
within the eWorkforce programme such as the new Financials. 

 Work has begun on the specification of integration projects that will release back-office 
resource in the Environmental Services Unit. 

 Mobile working has been implemented in the Environmental Services Unit for the 
Neighbourhood Wardens and is delivering appreciable efficiencies. The system has been 
well received by the Wardens and it is expected further work will be done to extend its 
effectiveness. 

 
 The ICT Strategy Review is almost complete with a draft consultation document expected by 

October. 
  
 
4. PERFORMANCE AGAINST UNIT KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Indicator 
Description 

Performance 
2004/05 

Target 
2005/06 

Performance 
at 30 June 05 

Comments 

BVPI157 
 
 
Customer 
Satisfaction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Calls resolved 
within agreed 
timescales 
 
How much do 
we pay for a 
PC? 
 
Server 
Availability 
 
Network 
Availability 

92% 
 
 

90% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 

Not measured 

100% 
 
 

92% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80% 
 
 
 

£750 
 
 
 

98.9% 
 
 

98.9% 

95% 
 
 

75% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 
 

Not measured 
 
 

Not measured 

Gap analysis has been 
performed. 
 
Low response rate 
allows figures to be 
skewed by small 
number of adverse 
comments. Workload 
had affected ability to 
respond and, therefore, 
satisfaction. 
 
Service Level 
Agreements to begin 
December 2005 
 
Annual KPI 
 
 
 
Software and hardware 
in place. Monitoring to 
begin Sept05. 

 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
 Progress is being made in many areas but commitment to project work has resulted in limited 

progress in unit tasks such as KPI measurement. Some progress has been made however 
and it is hoped that the reporting of availability will be possible for the next monitoring report. 

 
 
 
 Tim Murphy 
 
 HEAD OF ICT SERVICES 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 13



Page 8 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

BUSINESS PLAN MONITORING STATEMENT FOR THE 
CUSTOMER DEMOCRATIC & OFFICE SUPPORT SERVICE UNIT 
 
FOR THE PERIOD APRIL TO JULY 
 
 
1. KEY MESSAGES 
 
 This period has seen a number of major events for the Unit. The call centre has gone live 

making “Contact Chorley” a reality. The best value review “Customer Access and focus” was 
concluded and as we now know awarded the Council 'excellent' access to its services” and 
“'excellent' prospects for further improvements ...” The Unit has successfully managed the 
General Election and County Council elections and has made progress in areas such as 
Area Forums’ Procurement Strategy and e-workforce. 

 
  

 CURRENT 
POSITION 

FORECAST 
OUTTURN 

   
Number of green KPI’s 2 5 
Number of blue KPI’s 2 3 
Number of red KPI’s 3 0 
Number of KPI’s not yet measured 1 0 
   

 
2. BUDGET UPDATE 
 
  

       

July 2005     £'000 

       

ORIGINAL CASH BUDGET    2,931 

       

Add Adjustments for In year cash movements  

       

Slippage from 2004/2005     

 - Use of Earmarked Reserves   151 

Virements (to)/from other Services    

 - Transfer of Allpay to Finance   (50) 

Transfer from contingency - additional salary costs  

Other       

Cabinet approved decisions     

Delegated Authority decisions    

 - Accomodation Project Costs *     

       

ADJUSTED CASH BUDGET   3,032 

       

Less Corporate Savings      

       

Contribution to Corporate savings targets   

 - Salaries savings       

       

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 14



Page 9 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

CURRENT CASH BUDGET   3,032 

       

       

FORECAST      

       

EXPENDITURE      

       

Staffing costs - Office Support Services  (48) 

Software/equipment - Office Support Services  8 

Staffing costs - Corporate Procurement  (6) 

Staffing costs - Democratic Services   (7) 

Office Accommodation - King Street   16 

Office Accommodation - Duxbury   43 

Roses Marketplace Licence    5 

       

INCOME      

       

       

FORECAST CASH OUTTURN 2005/2006  3,043 

       

       

Key Assumptions      

       

- use of King St Offices to end of September  

- use of Duxbury Offices to end of December  

       

Key Issues/Variables     

       

-       

       

Key Actions      

       

       

       
 
 
3. SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS 
 
 The Unit continues to develop in all its key areas and August is a key month for the Unit with 

a number of major projects going live. Contact Chorley will see the introduction of the 
Customer Relations Manager software. Democratic Services goes live with its Accessing 
Democracy project. The new intranet “theloop” will be launched and the new flexi system, 
which will impact on all staff, is rolled out.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 15



Page 10 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

4. PERFORMANCE AGAINST UNIT KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
 APRIL - MAY 

 

Indicator 
Description 

Performance 
2004/05 

Target 
2005/06 

Performance 
at 31 May 05 

Comments 

 
Satisfaction – 
Contact centre 
 
Customers 
seen within 10 
mins at One 
Stop Shop 
 
Sickness 
Absence 
 
Reports & 
Agendas 
Published 
online 
 
Minutes 
published 
within 5 
working days 
 
Procurement 
Milestones 
achieved 
 
Number of 
press releases 
issued 
 
Satisfaction 
with Service to 
Service Heads 
 
 

 
 

* 
 
* 

 
 
 

4.3 
 
 
* 
 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 
 
 
 
 

 
 

90% 
 
 

100% 
 
 
 

8.90 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 
 
 

85% 
 
 
 

200 
 
 
 

85% 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
_ 
 
 

81.5% 
 
 
 

1.48 
 
 
 

50% 
 
 
 
 

50% 
 
 
 
 
_ 
 
 
 
_ 
 
 
 
_ 
 
 
 
 
 

New indicator data not 
available for first 2 
months. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Target based on 
introduction of new 
Democratic services 
software due to go live 
22 August 05 
 
Target based on 
introduction of new 
Democratic services 
software due to go live 
22 August 05 
 
Quarterly Indicator 
 
 
 
Quarterly Indicator 
 
 
 
Yearly Indicator 

 * Indicates new PI 
 
 JUNE - JULY 
 

Indicator 
Description 

Performance 
2004/05 

Target 
2005/06 

Performance 
at 30 June 05  

Comments 

Satisfaction – 
Contact centre 
 
 
 
 
Customers 
seen within 10 

 
* 
 
 
 
* 
 
 

 
90% 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 

 
99.3% 
 
 
 
 
 

79.8% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 16



Page 11 

Business Plan Monitoring Statements April- July 2005 

mins at One 
Stop Shop 
 
Sickness 
Absence 
 
Reports & 
Agendas 
Published 
online 
 
Minutes 
published 
within 5 
working days 
 
Procurement 
Milestones 
achieved 
 
Number of 
press releases 
issued 
 
Satisfaction 
with Service to 
Service Heads 
 

 
4.3 
 
 
* 
 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 
 
 
* 

 
 
 

8.90 
 
 

75% 
 
 
 
 

75% 
 
 
 
 

85% 
 
 
 

200 
 
 
 
 

85% 
 
 
 

 
 
 

0.56 
 
 

52.5% 
 
 
 
 

52.5% 
 
 
 
 

38% 
 First Quarter 

 
 
54 

 First Quarter 

 
 
 
 
 
Target based on 
introduction of new 
Democratic services 
software due to go live 
22 August 05  
 
Target based on 
introduction of new 
Democratic services 
software due to go live 
22 August 05 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Yearly Indicator 
 
 
 

 * Indicates new PI 
 
 
 
5. CONCLUSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 Signature: _________________________________ 
 
 MARTIN O’LOUGHLIN 
 HEAD OF CUSTOMER, DEMOCRATIC & OFFICE SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 17



Agenda Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Head of Corporate and Policy 
Services 

Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 5/10/05 

 

ANALYSIS OF COMPLAINTS TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN 2004/05 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To provide the Panel with an analysis of complaints referred to the Chief Executive and 
Local Government Ombudsman in 2004/05. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. The subject of complaints clearly has a very strong link to the Council’s corporate priority 

of serving the customer better.  Complaints can be a very useful source of learning in 
seeking to improve the services we offer in the future. 

 

RISK ISSUES 

 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy  Information  

Reputation � Regulatory/Legal  

Financial  Operational � 

People  Other  

 

BACKGROUND 
 
4. Complaints can be particularly damaging to the Council’s reputation and it is important 

that we deal with complainants promptly, courteously and thoroughly.  Even where a 
complaint is not upheld it is important that we explain the reasons for our decision fully 
and provide advice on further routes the complainant can take if they are still not satisfied. 

 
5. As indicated above complaints are an important source of learning for us.  We must 

recognise this and seek to improve procedures and practices where appropriate. 
 

COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 

 
6. The Council’s complaints procedure has three levels.  In the first instance a complainant 

is invited to complain to the Service Head responsible for the activity/service which has 
generated the complaint. 

 
7. If the complainant is not satisfied with the response received they are advised of their 

right to refer the matter to the Chief Executive (the second level).  These complaints are 
investigated on behalf of the Chief Executive by Corporate and Policy Services. 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 19



8. If following this investigation the complainant is still not satisfied they are invited to refer 
the matter to the Local Government Ombudsman (the third level).  The Ombudsman is an 
independent third party and their services are free.  Corporate and Policy Services act as 
the contact point between the ombudsman and the Council and ensure all relevant 
information is provided to facilitate the investigation. 

 

ANALYSIS OF COMPLAINTS 2004 – 05 

 
9. Unfortunately we do not currently capture data on complaints made to Service Units at 

level one.  It is, however, hoped that this will change as the Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) system is introduced as part of the ongoing development of the 
Contact Centre. 

 
10. Appendices A and B do, however, provide an analysis of complaints to the Chief 

Executive and Ombudsman respectively during 1004/05. 
 

COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
11 None. 
 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
12. None. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
13. The panel are invited to consider and comment on the report.  You may also wish to 

consider whether any further scrutiny of the issues raised would be appropriate. 
 
 
TIM RIGNALL 
HEAD OF CORPORATE AND POLICY SERVICES 
 
 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Tim Rignall 5140 1.9.05 CPSREP/90171JM2 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 20



 
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMPLAINTSCOMPLAINTSCOMPLAINTSCOMPLAINTS    

MONITORING REPORT TOMONITORING REPORT TOMONITORING REPORT TOMONITORING REPORT TO    

CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINYSCRUTINYSCRUTINYSCRUTINY    

April 2004 April 2004 April 2004 April 2004 ---- March 2005 March 2005 March 2005 March 2005

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 21



CONTENTS 
 

 

 

1. Introduction         
         Page 3 
 
 
2. Notes of Clarification       
      

Page 4 
 
 
3. Total number of complaints received by the Chief Executive 
Office, broken down by Service Area      
 

Page 5 
 
 
4. Detailed breakdown of complaints received by the Chief 
Executive’s Office (including outcomes/action taken)   
 

Pages 6- 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 22



1. INTRODUCTION 
 
This report details those complaints referred to the Chief Executive during 
2004/2005 financial year. These complaints are investigated, on behalf of the 
Chief Executive, by Corporate and Policy Services.  
 
Complaints, Comments and Compliments are important to the authority, as 
the information that they provide can serve as a useful feedback on our 
services and how they impact on the community we serve.  By using this 
information we can improve our services and become more responsive to 
customers needs and concerns. By handling complaints in line with best 
practice we can demonstrate our commitment to customer care, and to 
continuous improvement. 
 
As a Council we utilise the following definition of a complaint: 
 
‘An expression of dissatisfaction by one or more members of the public about 
the Council’s action or lack of action or about the standard of a service, 
whether the action was taken or the service provided by the Council itself or a 
person or body acting on behalf of the Council’. 
 
Generally, and for the purposes of this report, a complaint is distinguished 
from a request for service such as pest control or reporting a defect such as 
faulty street lighting. 
 

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 23



2. NOTES OF CLARIFICATION 
 
 
In those instances where a complainant has referred to the activity of more 
than one Unit or Service area in their complaint, each separate aspect of the 
complaint against separate units or service areas will be recorded as a 
complaint, for monitoring purposes. The purpose of this is to ensure that the 
information provided about each distinct service area by complainants can be 
used to inform service improvements. 
 
The response date recorded for the purpose of this report is the date on which 
a full response was sent. Reference is not made to any contact informing the 
complainant of progress made in the investigation of their complaint, or of 
requests for additional information, which can, on occasions, delay responses. 
When such delays occur we endeavour to keep complainants updated 
regarding progress made. 
 
Those units against which no complaints have been referred to the Chief 
Executive, are not included in this report. 
 
Corporate Complaints 
 
The Chief Executive deals with three types of complaints: 
 
Stage 1: Complaints formally registered for the first time: 
 
This type of complaint should be referred to the Service Unit concerned; 
however, on occasion these are referred directly to the Chief Executive’s 
Office. 
 
If a complaint is referred to the Chief Executive at this stage, it may be passed 
directly to the Unit concerned to respond, or the Chief Executive may respond 
in liaison with the Unit. 
 
Those Stage 1 complaints recorded below are just the ones received and 
investigated by the Chief Executive’s Office, not those referred directly to 
units. 
 
Stage 2: If the customer is not satisfied with the response received from the 
Unit concerned, they are offered the opportunity to complain to the Chief 
Executive’s Office.   
 
Stage 3: Complaints referred to the Local Government Ombudsman. Those 
complainants, who remain dissatisfied with the response received from the 
Chief Executive’s Office, may refer their complaint to the Local Government 
Ombudsman for investigation. Complaints of this nature are handled by 
Corporate and Policy Services on behalf of the Chief Executive.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 24



 
Timescales: 
 

The investigating officer should ensure that all complaints are acknowledged 
in writing within five working days of the complaint being made. The complaint 
should be investigated and a response should be sent with in ten working 
days of receipt. Where it is clear that investigation of a complaint will take 
longer than ten working days a letter of explanation should be sent, within ten 
days, and the complainant should be kept informed of progress at regular 
stages whilst the investigation is ongoing.   
 
If a complainant is dissatisfied with the response received from the Chief 
Executive they will be informed that the Council’s complaints procedure has 
been exhausted. The complainant will be informed of their right to complain to 
the Local Government Ombudsman. Those complaints referred to and 
investigated by the Local Government Ombudsman will form part of a 
separate report. 
 

When dealing with those complaints directed to the Chief Executive by the 
Local Government Ombudsman, responses are scheduled according to the 
timescales set out by the Local Government Ombudsman, in some instances 
these may differ from those set out in the Council’s complaints policy. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 25



3. TOTAL NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED, BROKEN DOWN BY 
SERVICE AREA 
 

UNIT TOTAL NUMBER OF 
COMPLAINTS 

AVERAGE RESPONSE 
TIME (WORKING DAYS) 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES 

7 8 Days 

FINANCE 6 11 Days 

HOUSING SERVICES 2 25 Days 

PLANNING SERVICES 10 11 Days 

PROPERTY 
SERVICES 

3 11 Days 

PUBLIC SPACE 
SERVICES 

15 10 Days 

 

Note: The length of time taken to send a full response to a complaint can vary 
according to the nature of the complaint. Those complaints that are complex 
in nature tend to involve ongoing contact with the complainant and various 
bodies and may elicit a longer period of time before a final response can be 
sent, this, along with the relatively small number of complaints relating to 
particular units may account for some of the variations in average response 
times between different units. 
 
As those complaints referred to the Local Government Ombudsman are not 
detailed in this report the total number of complaints recorded above does not 
account for all of those complaints that pass stage two of the Council’s 
complaints procedure. For details of those complaints referred to the Local 
Government Ombudsman please see the Ombudsman’s report under a 
separate cover. 
 

 

 

Average Response Time for all Service Areas: 12 

Days 

Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 26



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 27



 

4. DETAILED BREAKDOWN OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE   
 

Environmental Services 
 

DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ ACTION TAKEN 

25/04/2004 06/05/200
4 

Failure to effectively deal with Motorcycle 
nuisance.  

Request to Lancashire County Council that post and rail 
fence around the site is extended. Proposed erection of 
landscaping and stock fence. Possibility of initiating a 
grazing license to protect land and prevent access 
explored. Vandal proof signage issued. Continue to 
pursue possibility of provision of two legitimate sites for 
'off road' motorcycling 

02/06/2004 21/06/200
4 

Failure to collect compost bin and 
dissatisfaction with response received from 
Service Head 

Complaint not upheld as proper practice had been 
followed. Visit by Environmental Services to complainant 
to discuss brown bin recycling scheme. Advice issued to 
complainant regarding how best to deal with missed 
collections. 

08/07/2004 21/07/200
4 

Complaint regarding the inappropriate use of 
a letter warning of enforcement action 
regarding additional waste citing the 
inappropriate and offensive wording of letter. 

Withdrawal of offending letter from circulation, warning 
letters no longer to be issued. Apology issued.  

07/03/2005 10/03/200
5 

Failure to take proper enforcement action 
regarding noise nuisance from adjoining 
property 

Complaint not upheld as proper procedure had been 
followed and no nuisance identified. Ongoing contact 
with complainant regarding various welfare issues 
identified. Environmental Services and Corporate and 
Policy Services liasing with complainant, GP and Age 
Concern to address welfare issues. 

04/03/2005 16/03/200 Failure to take appropriate preventative and Special patrols instigated in area. Offer to meet with 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

8



5 enforcement action regarding fouling of the 
public highway. 

complainant to discuss problem issued. Explanation of 
enforcement policy issued. 

27/10/2004 05/11/200
4 

Complaint regarding perception that 
Environmental Services had recommended a 
contractor to work with asbestos who 
subsequently failed to meet requirements. 

Complaint not upheld. Explanation issued that although 
the Service had provided contact details of those 
contractors in the area who held an asbestos license 
this did not constitute a recommendation. Clean up of 
area undertaken as a gesture of goodwill. 

TOTAL: 6 

 

Finance 
 

DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ACTION TAKEN 

10/11/2004 26/11/200
4 

Allegation of inaccurate record keeping 
regarding Housing Benefits and ensuing 
stress caused to complainant.  

Complaint not upheld as best practice and national 
guidelines had been followed. Full explanation of record 
keeping requirements issued to complainant. Complaint 
referred to District Auditor and Local Government 
Ombudsman by complainant. 

26/10/2004 12/11/200
4 

Dissatisfaction regarding action taken to 
recover outstanding Council Tax Payments. 
Inappropriate referral of an attachment to 
earnings order to employers and failure 
subsequent failure to mark attachment to 
earning order as private or confidential or to 
mark for specified person’s attention. 

Complaint regarding enforcement action not upheld. All 
future attachment to earning orders to be referred to 
Payroll manager and marked as confidential 

10/12/2004 14/01/200
5 

Dissatisfaction regarding action taken to 
recover outstanding Council Tax Payments. 

Complaint not upheld, action taken in line with National 
Requirements. Explanation issued regarding criteria for 
recovery action. 

21/02/2005 07/03/200 Action taken to refer outstanding debts to a Complaint not upheld, action taken in line with National 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 2

9



5 firm of bailiffs Requirements. Explanation issued regarding criteria for 
recovery action. 

12/02/2005 12/02/200
5 

Dissatisfaction regarding action taken to 
recover outstanding Council Tax Payments.  

Complaint not upheld. Detailed explanation of action 
provided. Outstanding amount subsequently paid in full. 

08/03/2005 14/03/200
5 

Dissatisfaction with the Housing Benefits 
Service individual case review 
arrangements. Complaint regarding 
customer service. 

Drafting of clearer explanation of the criteria for review 
selection to be provided to staff. Detailed explanation of 
selection process issued to complainant. 

TOTAL: 6 

 
 
 
 
Housing Services 
 

DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ACTION TAKEN 

08/03/2005 01/04/200
5 

Dissatisfaction regarding previous Housing 
Maintenance operative Staff Bonus Scheme 

Details of bonus scheme provided in line with 
requirements of the Freedom of Information act.  

30/06/2004 16/08/200
4 

Inappropriate enforcement action regarding 
smoke nuisance complaints. Ongoing 
contact with complainant before final 
response issued. 

Complaint not upheld. Tri-Party meeting held with 
interested parties and independent advisory body, 
advice issued to bring a resolution to issue. 

TOTAL: 2 

 
 
 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

0



Planning 
 
DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ACTION TAKEN 

29/06/2004 08/07/200
4 

Complaint regarding decision to refuse a 
planning application, allegation of differential 
treatment, unjustified change in land use 
allocation 

Complaint not upheld. Detailed explanation of planning 
regulations issued. Complainant informed of right to 
appeal to the secretary of state with regards to the 
refusal of a planning application 

09/08/2004 15/09/200
4 

Objection to a grant of Planning Permission, 
Complaint regarding staff conduct. 

Complaint not upheld procedures correctly followed. 
Complainant offered opportunity to refer complaint to 
Local Government Ombudsman. 

20/08/2004 03/09/200
4 

Objection to grant of Planning Permission Complaint not upheld. Complainant offered opportunity 
to refer complaint to Local Government Ombudsman. 

15/11/2004 25/11/200
4 

Failure to take appropriate Planning 
Enforcement action 

Complaint not upheld. Complainant offered opportunity 
to refer complaint to Local Government Ombudsman 

17/09/2004 04/10/200
4 

Planning Permission regarding a 
telecommunications development.  
Dissatisfaction with response from Planning 
Services. 

Explanation to complainant regarding the planning rules 
for telecommunications developments, ongoing lobbying 
of Central Government to amend legislation with regard 
to telecommunications developments. Apology issued 
for any lack of clarity in previous explanations of the 
system and process. 

30/11/2004 23/12/200
4 

Objection to planning permission, 
inadequate enforcement of planning controls 
and failure to respond to correspondence. 

Ongoing monitoring of site in question, apology for 
failure to respond to correspondence. 

06/12/2004 23/12/200
4 

Objection to planning decision, lack of 
response to correspondence 

Explanation of planning regulations issued. Apology 
issued to complainant with regards to the failure to 
respond to correspondence. Complainant provided with 
details of the Local Government Ombudsman. 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

1



17/12/2004 23/12/200
4 

Planning Enforcement Ongoing monitoring of site and materials referred to by 
complainant. Complainant offered opportunity to refer 
complaint to Local Government Ombudsman. 

11/01/2005 17/01/200
5 

Failure to properly enforce planning 
conditions for new development. 

Detailed explanation issued to complainant regarding 
ongoing development of the site and those issues, which 
are being resolved in order to meet planning 
requirements. 

16/03/2005 04/05/200
5 

Objection to a Planning decision Complaint not upheld, complainant issued with advice 
regarding planning guidelines. 

TOTAL: 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

2



 
 
 

Property Services 
 

15/11/2004 25/11/2004 Complaint regarding the failure to consult 
residents over the potential to license a 
site and regarding previous advice issued 
stating that covenants prevented the 
fencing of land. 

Apology issued, along with a commitment to consult 
fully with residents on future land use. 

 
 
 
 
 

DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ACTION TAKEN 

21/04/2004 13/05/2004 Complaint that an excessive amount of 
time was taken to reach a conclusion 
regarding the exercise of a Compulsory 
Purchase Order. Failure to respond to 
correspondence.  

Change to future property transactions to ensure that 
interested parties are kept better informed of progress 
made in negotiations with regard to Compulsory 
Purchase Orders.  

26/04/2004 10/05/2004 Failure to respond effectively to reports of 
Motorcycle Nuisance on Council 
Property. 

Request to LCC that post and rail fence around the site 
is extended. Proposed erection of landscaping and 
stock fence. Possibility of initiating a grazing license to 
protect land and prevent access. Vandal proof signs 
issued. Continue to pursue possibility of provision of 
two legitimate sites for 'off road' motorcycling 

TOTAL: 2 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

3



Public Space Services 
 

DATE 
RECIEVED 

DATE OF 
REPONSE 

DESCRIPTION OUTCOME/ACTION TAKEN 

26/05/2004 09/06/2004 Complaint regarding the quality of the 
Grass Cutting Service. 

Details from complainant used to inform Overview and 
Scrutiny enquiry into the grass cutting service, which   
was launched as a result of a high number of 
complaints received. Recommendations of Scrutiny 
panel implemented. Full response sent to complaint. 

02/06/2004 21/06/2004 Missing signage on residential street, 
Inadequate maintenance of Public 
Highway, failure to take effective action to 
tackle congestion, excessive traffic 
calming measures. 

Complainant advised of ongoing activity to tackle 
problems with congestion in cited area. Apology issued 
regarding missing signage and order placed to replace. 
Repairs instigated on damaged stretch of highway. 
Explanation issued regarding traffic calming measures, 
offer issued to meet complainant to discuss issued 
further. 

15/07/2004 16/07/2004 Failure to take effective action regarding 
Tree Maintenance on the public highway, 
Inappropriate staff conduct.  

Correspondence sent to those parties responsible for 
maintenance of trees threatening legal action if trees 
are not properly maintained. Staff member involved 
given guidance on the requirements of the customer 
charter. 

18/06/2004 06/07/2004 Complaint that Arboricultural 
Maintenance Activity was excessive 
leading to removal of plants from Duxbury 
Park, which was not necessary. 

Complaint not upheld, plants in question diseased. 
Detailed explanation issued to complainant regarding 
activity. 

07/07/2004 21/07/2004 Complaint regarding the quality of the 
Grass Cutting Service, Lack of response 
to correspondence. 

Details from complainant used to inform an Overview 
and Scrutiny enquiry into the grass cutting service, 
which was launched as a result of a high number of 
complaints received. Recommendations of Scrutiny 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

4



panel implemented. Full response to complainant. 

07/07/2004 21/07/2004 Gritting Service, Lack of Response to 
correspondence 

Gritting Bin installed close to site in question. Apology 
issued for lack of response to correspondence, 
investigation into processes for dealing with complaints 
with in Public Space Services launched. 

03/08/2004 05/08/2004 Objection to the removal of an A-Frame 
from the Public Highway 

Complaint not upheld, Cost of removal fee waived, to 
enable matter to be brought to a close. 

15/11/2004 25/11/2004 Complaint regarding the failure to consult 
residents over the potential to license a 
site and regarding previous advice issued 
stating that covenants prevented the 
fencing of land. 

Apology issued, along with a commitment to consult 
fully with residents on future land use. 

26/11/2004 03/12/2004 Delays incurred in undertaking repairs to 
a damaged gravestone 

Apology issued for any distress caused to the 
complainant, works instigated as a matter of urgency. 

29/11/2004 08/12/2004 Complaint that sufficient Street Lighting 
has not been installed on a new 
residential development. 

Explanation offered to complainant regarding the 
process of adopting a site and the responsibility for 
street lighting at current stage of development. 

03/12/2004 20/12/2004 Complaint regarding the quality of the 
Grass Cutting Service, Lack of response 
to correspondence. 

Mail logging system implemented in Public Space 
Services to address problems regarding failures and 
delays incurred in responding to correspondence. 
Meeting arranged between complainant and 
representative from Public Space Services to bring 
about satisfactory conclusion to issue. 

23/12/2004 08/02/2005 Damage to property caused by grease 
and oil deposits from a neighbouring 
business. Failure of Public Space 
Services to properly enforce regulations 
and to properly maintain gullies. 

Ongoing contact between representative of Public 
Space Services and complainant to resolve issue. 
Letter sent to offending business threatening 
enforcement action if discharges onto public highway 
continue, ongoing legal action to be pursued. 

10/02/2005 02/03/2005 Complaint regarding the development of Complaint not upheld. Complainant issued with contact 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

5



Brinscall Linear Park undertaken in 
partnership with Groundwork 

details to discuss any ongoing concerns. Maintenance 
schedule issued to meet the concerns expressed by 
the complainant. Contact ongoing between 
complainant and Public Space Services 

25/02/2005 10/03/2005 Failure to properly maintain the public 
highway resulting in damage to vehicle, 
Lack of response to correspondence (via 
email). 

Complaint regarding maintenance of highway 
redirected to Lancashire Highways Partnership to be 
pursued as compensation claim. Investigation into 
handling of complaint received via email instigated. 
Agreement with Public Space Services that all 
complaints directed via the website in email and sent to 
the Lancashire Highways Partnership trigger a detailed 
explanation to complainants that email is sent to the 
Lancashire Highways partnership and are not 
acknowledge as a matter of course but rather action is 
generally instigated without contact. 

17/11/2004 08/12/2004 Failure to take appropriate action 
regarding the flooding of residential 
property. Failure to respond to 
correspondence. 

Enforcement action to be taken against those utilising 
unauthorised drainage connections to the surface 
water system. Piece of work initiated to consider the 
practicalities of increasing the capacity of drainage to 
the property in question. Apology issued for failure to 
respond to correspondence, to form part of ongoing 
review of the way in which such correspondence is 
dealt with. 

25/02/2005 10/03/2004 Complaint regarding perceived failure to 
maintain the Public Highway to requires 
standards resulting in damage to a 
vehicle. Failure to respond to email 
correspondence. 

Complaint regarding failure to maintain Public Highway 
not upheld. Apology issued for failure to respond to 
email correspondence, investigation of process for 
dealing with complaints received via email ongoing. 
Agreement reached that all emails sent to Lancashire 
Highways partnership via Chorley Borough Council’s 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

6



website will contain text explaining the process for 
dealing with complaint through the Highways 
Partnership. 

15/11/2004 25/11/2004 Complaint regarding failure to consult 
residents over the potential to license a 
site and regarding previous advice issued 
stating the covenants prevented the 
fencing of Land. 

Apology issued along with a commitment to consult 
fully with residents on future land use. 

TOTAL: 17 

 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

 
A

g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 3

7



Agenda Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 39



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 40



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 41



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 42



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 43



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 44



Agenda Item 5 Agenda Page 45



Agenda Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 47



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 48



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 49



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 50



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 51



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 52



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 53



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 54



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 55



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 56



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 57



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 58



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 59



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 60



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 61



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 62



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 63



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 64



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 65



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 66



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 67



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 68



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 69



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 70



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 71



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 72



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 73



Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 74



Agenda Item 6 Agenda Page 75



Agenda Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY PROJECT OUTLINE 
 

 

Review Topic:   
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (DPE) 
 

Investigation by:   
Customer Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel  
 

 Type:  Inquiry  
 

  

Objectives:   
 

1. To investigate the effectiveness of DPE in 
Chorley,  

2. To assess the impact the introduction of the 
Parkwise scheme has had on residents, 
visitors, motorists, traders and businesses. 

3.  To compare with Best Practice elsewhere.  
4.  To identify any future improvements for 

customer service. 

 

Desired Outcomes:   
 

1. To identify methods to show DPE and Parkwise as 
reasonable and customer friendly to residents and 
visitors to the town.  

2. To maximize operational efficiency of the DPE 
service. 

 

  

Terms of Reference:   
 
1.  To conduct an investigation into DPE and Parkwise and to identify (if any) improvements to the service. 
2.  To assess the current service provision. 
3.  To report on the investigations findings and make recommendation initially to Overview and Scrutiny 
 Committee consistent with the Inquiry’s objectives and desired outcomes. 

 
  

Key Issues:  
 
1. Off Street Parking  
2. On Street Parking 
3. Customers experience and satisfaction. 
4. Experience of Staff, e.g. security, training. 
5.  The publics understanding of the regulations 
6. The publicity of the regulations and DPE 

service.  
7. How appeals are managed.  
8.  Best Practice in other Authorities.  
 

Risks:   
 
1. The Council must comply with 1991 Road Traffic 

Act and Lancashire County Council Procedure 
Manual in relation to DPE. 

2. Finance and resource implications. 

3. Having desired outcomes beyond the capacity to 
deliver. 

4. Town centre viability/perception of Chorley Borough 
Council  

 
 

 
  

Venue(s):   Timescale:   6 months  
 

Town Hall, Chorley; agreed site visits 
 

Start:   July 2005 
 

 Finish:   January 2005 
 

 

Agenda Item 7eAgenda Page 77



Information Requirements and Sources: 
 
     Documents/evidence: (what/why?) 

• Background information on DPE and Parkwise 

• Ticket statistics: On Street/Off Street, Appeals: successful/not successful,  

• Tickets and Appeals by type of offence 

• Training manuals for Parking Attendants 

• Regulations and relevant contracts  

• Comparisons with other areas for numbers of tickets, numbers of PCN’s issued/cancelled and 
numbers of Parking Attendants.  

• Comparisons with rural and urban settings 

• Best Practice in other Authorities.  

 
     Witnesses: (who, why?) 

• Head of Public Space Services 
• Executive Member for Traffic and Transportation 
• Chorley Borough Councillors, including Councillor Mrs I Smith  
• Representative from contractor (NCP)/ Parking Attendants 
• Representative from Chorley Chamber of Trade, Disability Liaison Group, Markets Liaison Group 
• Members of the Public/residents? 

 
     Consultation/Research: (what, why, who?) 

• Letters to the local press 

• Views of Town Centre Forum  

• Questionnaire by Members of the Public, Councillors, Parish Councillors  

• Parking Attendants 

 
      Site Visits: (where, why, when?) 

• Town Centre 
• A neighbouring authority or an authority outside of Lancashire: to be determined 
• A Parking Attendant training session  

 
 

Officer Support: 
 
Lead Officer:   Alan Capstick  
 
 
Democratic Services:  Ruth Hawes  
 
 
Corporate Policy Officer:  To be identified as required 
 

Likely Budget Requirements: 
Purpose                                           £ 
 
Site visits                                              50 
Questionnaire  1,100 
Postage and administration       50 
 
Total   1,200 

 

 

Target Body1 for Findings/Recommendations  
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

                                                           

 

Agenda Item 7eAgenda Page 78



M:\ADMINMAS\TOOLKIT\ANNEXFORM8 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY INFORMATION CHECKLIST 
 

 
Name of Inquiry: Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (DPE) 
 
Scrutiny Body: Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 

1 

 

 

Background information on DPE and Parkwise 9 August 
2005 

Union Street 

 

2 

 

 

Ticket Statistics On Street/Off Street, Appeals 
Successful/Not Successful, Appeals By Offence 

9 August 
2005 

Union Street 

 

3 

 

 

Comparisons with other areas for numbers of tickets, 
numbers of PA’s, number of PCN’s issued and cancelled 

9 August 
2005 

Union Street 

 

4 

 

 

Articles regarding two reports on the public perception of 
DPE (Childs report and report by the University of 
Birmingham) 

7 Sept 
2005 

Town Hall  

 

5 

 

 

Information relating to Disabled Badge holders 7 Sept 
2005 

Town Hall 

 

6 

 

 

An example of a Penalty Charge Notice 7 Sept 
2005 

Town Hall 

 

7 

 

 

Publicity information to raise awareness for drivers who park 
inconsiderately 

7 Sept 
2005 

Town Hall 

 

8 

 

 

Comparison with rural and urban areas within Chorley 5 October 
2005 

Town Hall 

 

9 

 

 

Training Manuals for the PA’s   

 

10 

 

 

Best practice from other Authorities   

 

11 

 

 

Result of questionnaire in relation to DPE undertaken by 
members of the public, Councillors and Parish Councils 

  

 

12 

 

 

Summary of letters to the local press   

Agenda Item 7e Agenda Page 79



M:\ADMINMAS\TOOLKIT\ANNEXFORM8 

 
 

Agenda Item 7e Agenda Page 80



M:\ADMINMAS\TOOLKIT\ANNEXFORM9 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY WITNESS CHECKLIST 
 

 
Name of Inquiry: Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (DPE) 
 
Scrutiny Body: Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Witness 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 

1 

 

 

Executive Member for 
Traffic and Transportation  

Consideration of draft 
recommendations and 
feedback as Executive Member 

  

 

2 

 

 

Chorley Borough 
Councillors 
 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

3 

 

 

Representatives from the 
contractor (NCP) 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

4 

 

 

Parking Attendants Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

5 

 

 

Representative from the 
Disability Liaison Group 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

6 

 

 

Representative from the 
Chorley Chamber of Trade  

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

7 

 

 

Representative from the 
Markets Liaison Group  

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

8 

 

 

Members of the Public  Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

  

 

9 

 

 

    

 

10 

 

 

    

 
 

Agenda Item 7e Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/ ANNEXFORM 7 

 

SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION – PROJECT PLAN TOPIC: Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement DPE 

 2005 2006 

TASK Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar 

1. TOPIC SELECTED                                                             

                                                             

2. SCOPE INQUIRY                                                             

                                                             

3. COLLECT EVIDENCE                                                             

                                                              

                                                              

                                                              

                                                              

                                                             

4. CONSIDER EVIDENCE                                                              

                                                             

                                                             

5. REPORT                                                              

                                                             

6. FEEDBACK & ACTION                                                             

                                                             

7. MONITOR                                                             

                                                             

 A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 7

e
 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 8

3



Agenda Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/90436LK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2005/06 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 
J 

1. Holding the Executive to Account OSC             

 Annual Budget/Council House Rents        3      

 Annual Budget Consultation      3  3      

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator          3    

ESP    �   � � � �  
� 

Com SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 Business Plan and Performance Indicator 
Updates 

Cust SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 OSC    �   � � � �  � 

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance)  �            

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

      �     
 

� 

 Housing Maintenance Budget       3       

 Corporate Building Maintenance & Repair 
Service (6 monthly update) 

    3      3 
  

2. Policy Development and Review              

 Other to be identified              

3. External Scrutiny/Community Concern Full 
Scrutiny Inquiry 

             

Public Participation/Communication ComSP             

LCC’s arrangement for the Scrutiny of health 
function – Periodic Review 

CustSP 
   

3 
        

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ESP             

 Parkwise Scheme  CustSP             

4.  Monitoring of Inquiries              

 Housing Maintenance Appointments System CustSP   �      �    

 Flooding, Flood Prevention and Contingency 
 Plan/Proposals 

ESP      �      � 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CustSP   �      �    

 Juvenile Nuisance  ComSP             

 Grass Cutting ESP      �      � 

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ComSP       3      

 One-Stop Shop CustSP       3      

5. Other              

 O & S Training Programme OSC   3      �    
              

 
OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ESP      -  Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
ComSP -  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel             CustSP  -  Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 85



 

ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/90436LK 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Topics/Issues to be Programmed 
 

Ref Topic/Issue Title Date 
Included 

Priority 
Score 

Source Brief Description 

  
Full Scrutiny Inquiries 
 
Priority List 
 
IEG Measurement of Council’s progress 
(Cust SP) 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 
 
Policy Development/Review 
 
Priority List 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
26/06/03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4 and 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Referred to Customer O & S Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 8

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 8

6


